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DHIRAJ & DHEERAJ
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Edel Investments Limited

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Financial Statements of Edel Investments
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Special Purpose Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose Financial
Statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the special purpose
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Special Purpose Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Special Purpose Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the Special Purpose Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

: Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

\q}‘! & DH@& procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
Q‘_ PW\Iso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal




financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Company has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
which is prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended, on which we issued a separate auditor’s report to the members of the
Company dated 16" May , 2022. The separate auditor’s report can be used by S.R. Batliboi & Co.

LLP (the current statutory auditor of EFSL) in conjunction with the audit of consolidated financial
statements.

This report is issued at the request of the Company and is intended solely for the information and use
of the Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (‘Ultimate Holding Company’ or ‘EFSL’), for the
purpose of presentation of its consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022 and for the use of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (the current statutory auditor of EFSL) in
conjunction with the audit of consolidated financial statements and is not intended to be and should
not be used for any other purpose.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;




(c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid special purpose financial statements comply with the Accounting

(e)

()

(g

(h)

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these special purpose financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid

/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

it.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

itt.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including




foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a} and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For DHIRAJ &DHEERAJ
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:102454W

e
SHATILENDRA DADHICH
Partner
Membership Number: 425098
UDIN: 22425098AJLOY Q7398

Place of Signature: MUMBALI
Date: 16" May, 2022




Annexure A

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to special purpose financial statements
of Edel Investments Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the special purpose financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting jssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these special purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference

to these special purpose financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these special purpose financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to special purpose financial
statement included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
special purpose financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these special
purpose financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Special Purpose Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to special purpose financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to special purpose
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Imternal Financial Controls With Reference to Special Purpose
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these special
purpose financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to special purpose
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to special purpose financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to special purpose financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
special purpose financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For DHIRAJ & DHEERAJ
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Rg:./\g)isgration Number:102454W

/XﬁleENDM DADHICH
Partner '
Membership Number: 425098
UDIN: 22425098AJLOYQ7398
Place of Signature: MUMBAI
Date: 16" May, 2022




Edel Investments Limited
Balance Sheet

[Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
Note 3% March 2022 31 March 2021
{Audited) [Audited)
ASSETS
Financial assets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents T 98.90 41.13
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8 9.49 18.51
{c) Derivative finandial instruments g 0.11 2.99
{d} Trade receivables 10 9.99 8.69
(2] Stock in trade il 2,262.81 18.72
{f} Leans 3z 692,32 140.71
(g} Investments i3 2,348,112 2,348.12
{h} Other financial assets 14 2,883.58 214.03
8,305.32 2,776.90
Non-financial assets
(2} Current tax assets (net) 15 13.84 1.56
(b} Deferred tax assets {net) 16 130.66 185.67
{c) Praoperty, Plant and Equipment i7 6,67 3.18
(d} Other Intangible assets 17 .60 1.59
(&) Other non-financial assets 18 18.15 8.00
169,92 300.00
TOTAL ASSETS 8,475.24 2,976.90
LIABILITIES AND EQUHTY
Financial liabilities
{2) Payables
{) Trade payables 19
{i} total outstanding dues of micra ¢nterprises and small
enterprises 0.12 1.07
{il) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprisas and small enterprises 2,216.23 59.64
(b} Subordinated Liabilities 20 2,940.00 3050.00
(c) Other financial fiabilities 21 619,63 .79
5,775.98 3683.50
Naon-financial Rabilities
{8) Current tax liabilities (net) 22 - 8.66
{b} Provisians 23 34,14 4,57
{c) Other non-financiat liabilities 24 12.87 0.82
47.01 14.05
Equity
{a} Equity share capita! 25 350.22 350.22
{k) Other equity 2% 2,302.03 2,749.13
2,652.25 2.599.35
TOTAL LUABILITIES AND EQUITY 8,475.24 1,876.90
) ) 1-52
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Dhira] & Dheera) For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firms' Registration No, 102454W

Shaiténdra Dadhich
Partner
Membership No: 425098

Ashish Gupka
Director
DIN: 07775554

Bhargavl Halapet
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretal

Mumbai
16 May 2022

Mumbai
16 May 2022




Edel investments Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(Currency: Indian rupees in miflions)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations
Interest income 27 303.97 27.60
Fee and cammission income 23 47.74 16.48
Net gain on fair value changes 29 609.36 70.20
Tetal Revenue from operations 961.07 11428
Other Income 30 7.47 2.62
Total Revenue 968.54 116.90
Expenses
impairrment on financial instruments. 31 0.10 0.07
Finance costs 32 10.34 33.93
Employee benefit expenses 33 679.55 34,59
Depreciation, armortisation and impairment 17 4.30 2.81
Qther expenses 34 177.50 25.22
Total expenses 871.79 96.63
Profit / {Loss) before tax 96.75 20.27
Tax expense:
Current tax -B.66 B8.66
Deferred tax 54,98 5.43
Profit / (Loss) for the year 50.43 6.17
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurernent gain / loss on defined benefit plans {oct) 0.14 -0,28
Tax effect on Remeasurement gair / loss on defined benefit plans (OCY) -0.03 0.08
Total other comprehensive income 0,10 -0.20
Total comprehensive income 50.53 5.97
Earnings per equity share {Face value of Rs 10 each): 35 144 0.18
Baslc and diluted {in Rs.}
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 1.52
statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Dhiraj & Dheeraj For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firms' Registration No. 102454W

Punyashree Kanade Ashish Ghpt
Director Director
DIN: 08104699 DiN; Q7775554

‘%u\'"’f

Rajedv Khandat Bhargavi Halapeti
Chief Financial Qfficer Company Secretary

Mumbai Mumbai
16 May 2022 16 May 2022




£del Investments Limited
Cash Flow Statement

[€urrency: Indian rupees in milliens)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit / {Lass} before taxation

Adfustments for

Interest income

Impaifment on Financial Instruments

Depreciation

Interest expense

Interest expense on Subordinated Liabilities

Expense on employee stock option scheme

Interest income on tax refund

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Fair valuation gain on stock in trade

Pravision for gratuity and compensatad leave absences {incl Actuarial gain/loss)
Operating cash flow hefore warking capital changes
Adjustrents for working copital changes

Increase /{Decrease) in financial liabifities {inc! trade payables)
{Bacrease] / Increase in non-financial liabikities

Increase in fixed deposit accrued interast

Decrease / (Increase) in derivative financiat instryments {Assets]
Decrease/{increase) in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Decrease in Stock-in-trade

Increase in trade receivables

{Increase) / Decrease in other financlal assets

{Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assats

{Inerease} / Decrease in provision

Cash generated from / {used in} operations

Income tax {refund) / paid

Net cash (used in) fgenerated from operating activities - A

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Investment in preference shares of Group company

Sale of investment n preference shares of Group company
trterest received

Decrease in short term/leng term foans and advances {net}
Ner cash generated from / {used in) investing activities - B

[a]

Cash flaw from financing activitles

Proceeds from issue of preference shares

Payment on redemption of preference shares
Borrawings {other than debt securities} (Refer Note 2)
Loan given

Interest paid
Netcash [usedin) /

Netincrezse in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C)

d from e,

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Notes:

.

Cash and cash equivalents include the fellowing:
Batances with bank
In current account

~

Net figures have been reportad on account of volume of transactions.
This is the Cash flow statement referred 10 in our report of even data,

For Dhira] & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants

Firms' Registration No. 102454wW

ailendra Dadhich
artfier
Membership No: 425098

Mumbai
16-May-22

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
96.75 20.27
-79.28 -15.74
0.10 -
4.30 281
10.33 .14
- 3386
1.65 -
-0.03 -
-0.01 .
-140.63 -
9.92 2.72
96,93 50.06
2,768.45 4597
12.04 -1.7a
0.52 -0.28
2.88 2233
0.58 10100
-2,109.95 91.74
.19 -5
-1,669.59 -145.78
10,10 -6.43
19.66 -
-1,083.81 151.31
-8.91 26,24
-1,092.72 17735
-6.80 -1.27
-1,593.00 -
1,593.00 -
7442 15.74
-546.82 -
-479.20 1447
2,640.00 300.00
- -300.00
- -14.83
- -140.72
-10.31 =614
1,629.69 -161.69
57,77 30.13
41,13 10.98
98,90 4113
98.90 41,13
98.90 41.13

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

unyashree Kanade
Director

DiN; 8104699

Director
DIN: 07775554

L’

LY
Rajeev Khandal
Chicf Financlal Qfficer

Bhargavi Hatapeti
Company Secretary

Mumbal
16-May-22




Edel investments Limited
Staternent of changes in Equity

{Currency: indian rupees in millions)

{a} Equity share capitat
Particufars Amount
As at April 01, 2020 350.22
Changes in equity share capital during FY 20-21 -
As at March 31, 2021 350.22
Changes in equity share capital during FY 21.22 -
As at March 31, 2022 350.22
{b} Other equity
Capital Securitias ESOP reserve Retained Total
Redemption Premium earnings
Reserve
Balance at 31 March 2021 {ind AS) 4.50 2,291.24 0.67 -47.28 2,2439.13
Profit for the year - - . 50.43 50.43
Other comprehensive income - - - 0.10 0.10
ESOP reversal on lapse of vesting period 2.36 2.36
Total Comprehensive Income for the
year B - - 52,89 52,89
Balance at 31 March 2022 {Ind AS} 4.50 2,291.24 0.67 5.61 2,302.03

Capital redemption reserve;

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or
securities premium, A sum equal te the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve
is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Securities premium;

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares and the reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

ESOP reserve:

Certain employees of the Company have been granted options to acquire equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company {Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited}. This reserve represents the cost of these aptions based on their fair value at the grant dates as recognised over
the vesting period of such options, to the extent that the Ultimate Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the Company.

This is the Statement of changes in Eguity referrred to in our report of even date,

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firms' Regis ati/u:/x 102454W

hailendra Dadhich
Ftrer
Membership No: 425098

unyashree Kanade
Director Director
DIN: 98104699 DIN; 07775554

Al Y‘mw

N

Rajeev Khandal Bhargavi Halape! -
Chief Financiat Officer Company Secretal
Mumbai Mumbai

16 May 2022 16 May 2022




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Background

Edel Investment Limited {‘the Company’) was incorporated on 24-Nov-2009 as a public
limited company.

The Company is a subsidiary of ECap Equities Limited and is registered as a trading member
in Equity segment, Derivatives segment and Currency derivatives Segment with National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited {'BSE’).

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards})
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The Company's financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value
through profit and loss account and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
in millions {INR).

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India,
resulting in significant volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and
India’s economic activities. The pandemic and its consequent adverse effect on the economy
also adversely impacted the financial markets.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s management has assessed the
impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its
investments as at March 31, 2022 based on estimate of the future results and various
internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these financial
statements. The estimates as at the date of approval of these financial results may differ
based on the ongoing impact of the pandemic and the timing of the improvement in the
economy and the financial markets.




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

4.1

411

4.1.2

4.1.3

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its batance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division
I of the Schedule NI to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date {current) and more than 12 months
after the reporting date {non-current} is presented in Note 49.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet.
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following ¢ircumstances:

* The normal course of business
¢  The event of default

* The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the company and or its counterparties

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Fee income including advisory fees for services rendered is accounted aver the period as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

interest income s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVTOCL. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life cycle {including prepayments, penalty interest and
charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest
income.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the
Company caleulates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no tonger credit-impaired, the
Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired {(POCI) financial assets, the Company calculates
interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the
amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at original
recoghition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the
amortised cost of the POCI assets.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment
of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Brokerage income on currency derivatives broking business is recognised as per contracted
rates at the time of execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date
and is reflected net of related sub-brokerage expenses, goods and service tax {"GST"),
transaction charges and stock exchange expenses.

Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss,

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable
in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based
on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments
Financial assets:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing
the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either;
*  Amortised cost
*  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI]
*  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]
The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at
amortised cost:

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
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*  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business mode! whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

*  if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or msngmﬁcant in value both

individually and in aggregate (even if frequent),

If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow.

Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or foss on initial recognition):

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Other than above classification of amortised cost and FVOC], all other financial assets are
initialy measured at fair value and subsequently measured at FVTPL.

4.3.1.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest rate method (EIR)

The effective interest rate method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected credit life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

4.3.1.2 Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are
recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.
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Financial asset measured at FVOCI

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOC are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to statement of profit and loss. Interest income on such instrument is
recognised in statement of profit and loss as per EIR method.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss, unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any
discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109, Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met.
Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

¢ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; or

¢ The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a decumented risk
management or investment strategy; or

* The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or
it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value, Changes in fair value are recorded in statement of profit and loss with the exception
of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the
Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the own credit reserve
through OCi and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on
instrurments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively,
using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily reguired to be
measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.
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Financial guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate
are initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the
guarantee or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised
amount and the amount of loss alowance.

Loan commitment

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to
provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer during the duration of commitment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an eguity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received.

Derivatives

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange
forward contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair

value through profit or loss. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit
and loss immediately.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new
loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is
deemed to be POCL
When assessing whether or not to derecognise a financial asset, amongst others, the
Company considers the following factors:
¢ Change in currency of the loan
* introduction of an equity feature
* Change in counterparty
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If the maodification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired., The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

¢ The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows froem the
financial asset; or
* Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—~through’
arrangement,
Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the ‘eventual
recipients’), when all of the following conditions are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

» The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients,

A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:

* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the

practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to

exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
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the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial
liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as
new financial Hability, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss aliowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses {12m ECL). The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of defauilt, loss
given default {i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
foan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL s estimated as the difference between all cantractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account,

If a financial instrument includes both a loan (i.e. financial asset} and an undrawn
commitment (i.e. loan commitment) component and the Company cannot separately
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial asset
component, the ECL on the lvan commitment have been recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset, the ECL have been recognised as a provision. Also, for
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other loan commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance has been
recognised as a provision.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The coliateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded
on the balance sheet, However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some coflateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values
are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal
operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed
value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is
determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if
financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession
date in, line with the Company's policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or
other assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company
has no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans
as a response to the borrower's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when
such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower's present or
expected financial difficuities and the Company.would not have agreed to them if the
borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on
covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may
involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.
Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR
as calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor
forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur.
Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a
case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclased and
managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.
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Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liahility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial

instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised
below:

+ level 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has access at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quates available on the balance sheet date.

*  level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available
over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

« Level 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that
is significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are
recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company
periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
model calibratigns,

Therefare, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated
with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of
the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individua! counterparties for
non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end
of the reporting period.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dibution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. Transactions in currencies other
than Indian Rupees {i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit

Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme
which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual
basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan
is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. ~ ’
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.
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The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method,

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
that are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each
reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the ‘ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options
granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalment as a
separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair
value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned
above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation
is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended

use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto
the date of disposal.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its tangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 {transition date)} measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

As per the requirement of Schedule H of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of
Part C of the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the
fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Useful Life

Computers and data processing units - £nd user devices, such as 3 years
desktops, laptops, etc.
Motor Vehicles 8 years
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lntangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a pericd of 3 years based on its estimated
useful fife. For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 {transition date) measured

as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present chligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax (net).
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4.20.1

4.20.2

4.20.3

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or

back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:

* the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

® tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settied or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amaunt of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes unused MAT credit as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it is
probable that the Company will be able to utilise during the specified period, i.e., the period
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5.1

for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company
recognises deferred tax asset (MAT credit) as an asset, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the MAT asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is not probable that the
Company will be able to utilise it during the specified period.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is reguired to
make judgments’, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liahilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statermnents.

a. Business mode!l assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPi) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a lével that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset
was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.

b. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
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significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

¢. Consolidation of structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights
relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements. In the context of the Company, structured entities comprise
securitisation trusts in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative
investment funds / schemes thereof. The Company consolidates the structured entities that
it controls. When making this judgement, the Company also considers voting and similar
rights available to itself and other parties, who may limit the Company’s ability to control,
including rights to appoint, reassign or remove members of the structured entity’s key
management personnel who have the ability to direct the relevant activities, the exposure to
variability of returns and whether the Company has the ability to use its power to affect the

amount of the Company’s returns i.e. the variability of returns in refation to the total returns
of the investee entity.

d. Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be

exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options.
The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or
not, to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset}.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the stand-alone financial statements are prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a. Fairvalue of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
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market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e, an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation modeis. The inputs to these models
are taken from observahle markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values.

For investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow
model, given that the SRs are less liquid instruments. Expected cash flow levels including
timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding
the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are
based on models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of

liquidity, credit risk {both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and
volatility.

b. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

* PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

¢ The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
loss and the qualitative assessment.

= The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

+ Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD.

*+ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the £CL models.

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.
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c. Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
tife of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected

behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected thanges fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.

d. Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the
Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the
estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and
budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which the Company
expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

e, Estimating the incremental borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its incremental borrowing rate {‘IBR’} to measure lease liabjlities. Incremental
borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic enviranment.

6. Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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7 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-in current accounts

8  Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents
Fixed deposits, held as margin meney
Accrued interest on fixed deposits

8.1 Encumbrances’ on fixed deposit held by company

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
98.90 41.13

98.90 41.13

8,18 9.68

0.31 0.83

9.49 10.51

The company has pledged fixed deposits aggegating to Rs 9.18 millions with stock exchange for meeting margin requirements.

(Previous year Rs 9.68 millions)
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9 Derivative financiat instruments

The table below shows the fair values of d

Tuatiug £

ial instr

Jodd

as assets or liabilities togather with their notional amounts.

31 March 2022

Notional

Particulars

Unit

Netional
amount*

Fair value of
asset {INR)

Notional

Unit

National
amount*

Fair value of
Hahility (INR)

(i) Currency derivatives
-Currency Futures
-Optiens purchased
-Options sold (written)

Less: amounts offset {refer Note in
cffsetting disclosure}

Number of currency units

Number of currency units

Number of currency units

Number of currency units
Number of currency units

Number of currency units

26,69,000

4,00,54,600

-4,27,23,000

0.00

16.71

-16.71

Sub total {i}

() tndex linked derlvatives
-index Futures
-Options purchased

«Qptions sold {written}

-Others

Less: amounts offset [refer Note in
offsetting disclosure)

13,000

0.11

Number of currency units

23,000

-23,000

3.99

-3.89

Subtotal{li)

18,000

0.11

Total derivative finantial instruments

.11

31 March 2021

Notionat

Particulars

Unit

Notienat
amaunt®

Fair value of
asset

Notienal

Unit

Notional
amount*

Fair value of
Habllity

{6} Currency decivatives
~Currency Futures
-Cptions purchased
-Cptions soid (written)

Less: amounts offset (refer Note in
offsetting disciosura)

Number of currency units
Number of currency units

Number of currency units

11,80,000

299

Number of currency upits
Number of currency units

Number of currency units

9,72,000

11,80,000

0.00

0.07

-0.07

Fotal derivative financial instruments

199

* Notional amount regresents quantity In case of equity Haked, Index linked and currency derivatives
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9 Derivative financial instruments

(a) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets subject to offsetting 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2022

Offsetting recognis:

ed in balance sheet

Total assets

Particulars

Gross asset before
offset

Amount offsat*

Recognised in the
balance sheet

" |Derivative financial assets

0.11

0.11

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2022

Offsetting recognis:

ed in balance sheet

Total liabilities

Patticulars

Gross liahility before
offset

Amount offset*

Recognised in the
balance sheet

Derivative finzncial fabilities

20.70

20.70

* As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets and liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin

is Rs. Nil and Rs 20.70 millions respectively.

Financial assets subject to offsetting 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2021

Offsetting recognis:

ed i balance sheet

Total assets

Particulars Gross asset before Amount offset* Recognised in the
offset balance sheet
Derivative financial assets 2.99 - 2,99

Financial fiabilities subject to offsetting 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2021 Offsetting recognised in balance sheet Total liabilities

Particulars Gross liability before Amount offset* Recognised in the
offset balance sheet

Derivative financial fiabilities Q.07 0.07 -

* As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets and liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin

is Rs. Nil-and Rs 0.07 Millions respectively.
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10 Trade receivables:
Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 8.76 6.42
Receivables considered good - Unsecured - Group 1.23 2.27
Receivables - Credit impaired - .04
9.9% 873
Less ; Allowance for expected credit Josses - -0.04
9.99 8.69
Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:
Particulars iNR
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified
approach
Impairment allowance as on 31 March 2021 0.G4
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired [net) .04
Impairment allowance as on 31 March 2022 -
Provision rratrix for Trade receivables
ECL rate Trade recelvables days past due 1-96days| 181-360 days, Total
ECL Rate . - -
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 9.99 + 9.99
31 March 2022 |ECL - Simplified approach - : b
Net carrylng amount 9.99 - 9.99
ECL Rate - 100.00% -
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 8.69 0.04 8.74
31 March 2021 [ECL - Simplified approach - -0.04 -0.0a
Net carrylng amount 8.69 - 8.6%
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11 Stock in trade
At fair value through profit & Loss

Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars
(i} Equity instruments - 0.04
{ii) Debentures and Bonds (Quoted) 2,262.81 10.68
Total - Gross 2,262.81 10.72
(i} Investments outside India X - -
{ii) Investment in India 2,262.81 10.72
Total 2,262.81 10.72

Less: Allowance for impairment - -

Total net 2,262.81 10.72
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11 Stock-in-trade

Carried at fair valued through profit & loss account

(A) Equity shares (Quoted)
Reliance Industries Limited

(B} Debt Instruments

9.95% ECAP EQUITIES LIMITED 30.04.2024 BONDS
10.65% EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES

LIMITED 07.04.2022 BONDS

Grand Total (A+8}

As at 31 March 2022

Face value CQuantity Amaunt
10,00,000.00 1,764.00 1,961.47
10,00,000.00 300.00 301.34

2,262.81
2,262.81

As 3t 31 March 2021

Facevalue  Quantity Amount
10.00 20 0.04
0.04
10.58
10.68

10.72




Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Loans
at amortised cost:

Particulars ‘ As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Unsecured - Group 692.27 140.74
Unsecured 0.16 -

Total Gross 692.43 140.74
Less: Impairment loss allowance -0.12 -0.03
Total (Net) 692.31 140.71

Loans in India
Public Sectors - -

Others 692.43 140.74
Total Gross 692.43 140.74
Less: Impairment loss allowance -0.12 -0.03

Total {Net) 692.31 140.71
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13  [Investments

As at 31 March 2022
At cost (subsidiaries,
Particulars associates, and joint Total
ventures)

Investment in subsidiaries

Equity 2,348,12 2,348.12
Total - Gross {A) 2,348.12 2,348.12
(i} Investment outside India 2,348.12 2,348.12
(i} Investment in India - -
Total (B) 2,348.12 2,348.12
Less: Allowance for impairment {C) - -
Total Net {A-C) 2,348.12 2,348.12
As at 31 March 2021

At cost (subsidiaries,
Particulars associates, and joint Total
ventures}

Investment in subsidiaries

Equity 2,348.12 2,348.12
Total - Gross (A) i 2,348.12 2,348.12
{i} Investment ocutside India 2,348.12 2,348.12
{ii) Investment in India - '
Total (B} 2,348.12 2,348.12
Less: Allowance for impairment {C) - -
Total Net (A-C) 2,348.12 2,348.12
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13.1

Investments

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
Carried at Cost

Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited [Foreign
Subsidiary}

Face
Value

10,00

As at 31 March 2022
Quantity Amount
4,27,97,907 2,348.12

Face
Value

10.00

As at 31 March 2021

Quantity

4,37,97,907

Amount

2,348.12

2,348.12

1,348.12
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14

15

16

Other financial assets

Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositeries

Deposits placed with/exchange/depasitories

Security Deposits

Client Margin

Margin placed with broker

Premium received on outstanding exchange traded options
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind ar for value to be received

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes {net of provision for tax)

Deferred tax assets [net)

Deferred tax assets
Investments and other financial instruments
Unreatised loss / {gain} on derivatives
Fair valuation of investments - loss in valuation
Emplayee benefit obligations
Provision for leave accumulation
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1951
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitlement
Unused tax losses
Accumulated Losses

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

bifference between book and tax depreciation {including intangibles}
Investments and other financial instruments

Unrealised gain on derivatives

Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2022

16.10 17.10
0.23 0.23
360.00 .
2,506.11 195,86
-20.70 007
2184 0.51
2,883.58 714.03
13.84 156
13.84 156
0.3 011
338 391
132 0.02
£3.77 1.01
. 2057
151.47 164.23
170.03 189.73
0.25 a.14
40.38 -
39.50 3.92
39.37 4.06
130.66 185.67
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(a)

(b}

b
=
-

{c)

Income tax disclosure

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 3% March 2021 are:

Particulars 31 March 2022 { 31 March 2021
Cutrent tax - 8.66
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years -8.66 -
Deferred tax asset recognised on unused tax credit or unused tax losses 54.98 5.43
Total tax charge 46.33 14.09
Current tax -8.66 8.66
Deferred tax 54.98 5.43
Reconciliation of total tax charge
Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements 96,73 20.27
Tax rate (in percentage) 25.17% 11.82%
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate 24,35 5.64
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of arior years -8.66 -
Effect of Income not subject to tax:
Others - Interest expenses on preference share- Group - 9.42
Effect of deferred tax on penalties - 0.03
Effect of utilisation of tax losses or deferred tax assets on losses earlier| -1.31
recognised now considered not recoverable d
Write-down of available tax credits which are not considered recoverable 20.67
{far example, Minimum Alternate Tax credit) ’
Impact of tax rate changes (between two accounting periods) 15.74 -
Others -5.76 0.32
Tax charge for the year recorded in statement of profit and loss 46.33 14.09

income tax disclosure (continued)

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Movement for the period {2021-22)

Opening Recognised in Recognised in | Total movement | Closing deferred
deferred tax profit or loss other tax asset /
asset [ {liability} comprehensive (liability} as pe
as perind AS income Ind AS
Deferred taxes In relation to;
Property, Plant and Equipment -0.14 -0.11 - -0.1t -C.24
Stock-in-trade -0.01 -35.77 B -35.77 -35.78
Employee benefits obligations 104 14.09 -0.03 14.05 15.0
Fair valuation of Derivatives 011 0.24 - 0.24 a1
Unused tax losses 164.23 -12.77 - -12.77 151.45
Unused tax credits 20.65 -20.67 - ~20.67 <00
Total 185.67 -54.98 -0.03 -55.02 130.66
Maovement for the period {2020-21)
Opening Recognised in Recognised in | Total movement | Closing deferred
deferred tax profit or loss other tax asset /
asset / (liability} comprehensive {liability} as pel
as per Ind AS income Ind AS
Deferred taxes In relation to:
Property, Plant and Equipment .25 0.1t - 0.11 018
Stock-in-trade 0.18 -0.19 - -0.19 0.0
Employee benefits obligations 0.58 0.38 008 0.46 1.0
Fair valuation of Derivatives 2.61 -2.72 - -2.72 011
Unused tax losses 17591 -11.68 - -11.68 164.238
Unused tax credits 12.00 8.66 - 8.56 206
Total 191.04 -5.43 0.08 -5.36 185.67
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17  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block

Accurmnulated Depreciation Net Block
Additi i Disposal,
Description of Assets As at durir: l::: d?lé?iar:: As at 31 Asat Charge for dl:ri: 5tah: Asat3l | AsatdlMalch
P 1 Aprll 2021 & & March 2022 | 1April 2021 the year €™ prareh 2022 2022
year year year
Computers 5.65 6.32 0.02 11.95 2.46 3.07 0.02 5.52 642
Furniture and Fixtures - Q.26 - 0.26 - 0.02 - Q.02 024
Total 5.65 6.58 0.02 12.21 2.46 3.09 0.02 5.54 65566
[b) Other Intangible Assets
Grass Block Actumulated Amortisation Net Block
Additi Di I Disposal
Description of Assets As at durint'(t’:: &u::'os:h: Asat 31 As at Charge for du:i:n :;: Asat31 | Asat 31 Martch
" 1 April 2021 o & March 2022 | 1 April 2021 the year 2 March 2022 z022
year year year
Software 4.08 Q.22 - 4.30 248 121 - 3.70 0.60
Total 4.08 0.22 - 4.30 2.48 1.21 - 3.70 0.0
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17 [a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreclation Net Block
Additions Disposal Di
Description of Assets As at during the dulrsi: th: Asat31Mar| AsatApril  Charge for du:-si:asti: Asat31lMar| Asat31Mar
1 Aprit 202¢ & e 2021 1, 2020 the year & 2021 2021
year year year
Computers 4.79 1.41 .55 5.65 1.39 1.49 341 248 318
Total 4.79 141 0.55 5.65 1.39 1.4% 0.41 2.46 318
(b) Other Intangible Assets
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation Net Block
itions Di: Is Dis,
Description of Asset As at :.::::tl::e du:l'r:os;;e Asat 31 Mar| Asathfprit  Charge for duri:uialjz As at 31 Mar| Asat31 Mar
prion of Assets 1 April 2020 8 € 2021 1,2019  the year & 2021 2021
year year year
Software 4,08 - - 408 1.16 1.32 - 2.48 159
Total 4.08 - - 4.08 1.16 1.32 - 2.48 1,59




Edel Investments Limited
Nates to tha financlal statements (Continued}
[Cutrency: indian rupees In milions)

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

18 Drher son-tinancial assats
[unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Input tax credit 8.20 6.85
Qther deposits 0.as 0os
Prepaid expenses 5.47 0.48
Vendor Advances .43 018
Advances to employess - .44
18,15 3.00
19 Trade Payables
Trade payables frem non-related parties 534 5.76
Trade payables from related parties 2,211.01 5495
2,216.35 60,71
Trade Payakle Agelng :-
Qutstanding for March 31, 2022 from March 31, 2621 of Payment
Particulars Total
Less than L Year 1-2 Years -3 yaars More than 3 years,
{i) MSME 0.12 - - - G.12
(i) Others 2,216.19 0.04 - -2.00 221623
{ili} Bisputed dues - MSME - - - - -
vl Dlsputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total L1631 0.04 - -0.00 2,215.35
Trade Payabie Agelng :-
Outstanding far March 31, 2021 from Marth 31, 2021 of Payment
Total
Farticulars Less than 1 Year 12 Years -3 years Marg than 3 years
107 - - - 1.07
(G} Sthars 59.56 0.03 - 0. 59.64
iil) Dispted dues - MSME - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
otal 60.63 £.03 - 0.05 60.7%

Unbitled amount due of March 2022 1s Rs 3.59 [March 2021 Rs 4.31).

13.1 Detalls of duss to micrs and small enterprises

Trade Payobles includes Rs. Ni (previous year: Rs. M) payable to “Supsliers™ registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, No interest has
been paid / is payable by the Company during the year 1o *Suppliers” registered under this act, The aforementioned is based on the respanses received by the Company to its
inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicabitity under the said act.

20 Subordinated Liabilltles

Preference Shares Caphal 2,340.00 300.00
Total - Gross 2,340.00 300.00
Borrawings outside tndra - -

Borrawings in india 2,340.00 300.00
Total 2,340.00 300.00

0.4 Suberdinated Labllities
Terms and conditions related to subordinatad habdities
‘Subordinated tlabilivies - 31 March 2022

Maturithes <1 years Total

Rate of Intaresy

12.00% [12 %) 1,340.00 2,540.00
frots) 1.990.00 2,940.00

Terms and conditlom related 1o jubordinated tabilities
Subordinated Uabilities - 3 March 2021

Maturities 1 years, Total
Rate of interest
11.00- 12 00% (12 %) 300.00 300.00

Tatal 300 63 300.00




Edel Investments Limited
Nates to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millians}

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
21 Other financial liabilities
Provision for short sale 175.45 -
Other payables 13.58 0.08
Accrued salaries and benefits 430.60 2.70
619,63 2,79
22 Current tax liabilities {net)
Provision for taxation - 8.66
- 8.66
23 Pravisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 28.53 2.85
Compensated leave ahsences 5.61 0.38
Cthers -
Provision for capex - 1.34
34.14 4.57

24 Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues 12.87 0.82

1387 0.82




Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financlal statements (Continced)

{Currency: Indian rupeas in millions)

Asat Asag
31 March 2022 31 March 2031
25 Equity share capital
Authorbed :
3,60,00,000 (Previous year 3,95,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- sach 350.00 36000
40,008,000 {Previous year: 500,000) Preference shares of Rs. 10f- each 40.00 40,00
400.00 4G6.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

3,50,22,000 (Previous year: 3,50,322,000) Equity shaces of Rs. 10/-
each, fully paid-up™

35022 35022
350.22 350.22
Note:

* 3,16,52,000 (Pravious year - 3,16,52,000) equity shares of 85.10 each fully

Pald up aee held by Ecap Securities and tnvestment Limited {farmely Ecap Equlties Uimited), the
haiding company and its nomirees, .

° 33,70.000 {Previous year: 33,70,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up are heid By Edehweiss Fingrcial Services Limited

Movecnert i shore copieal :

1 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of shares Amount Noof shares Amount
Durstandlng at the beginning of the year 1,50,22,000 35022 3,50,22,00¢ 35022
Shares issuod during the year - - - -
Cutstandlng ot the #nd of the year 1,50,22,000 35022 3.50.22,000 35023

Ternes/righes atteched ta equity shaves :
The Company has only one chass of equity shares having 4 par value of Rs 10, Each holder of equity shares s entitled ta one vate per share held. In the event of ligLi

ation of
the Company, the holders of equlty shares will be entited ta receive #emaining assets of the campany, after distribution of olf preferential amounts. The dlstribution will ba in

propartion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders,

Shares hefd by holding/ultimate holding campany and/or thelr subsidiaries/assoclates

31 March 2017 As 2t 31 March 2023
% Change during the t¢ of shares
year ® N of shares %
€cap Securities and Investmant Limited {formety Ecap Equities. 9 3,16,52.080 90.38% 1,16,52,000 030
Limited {Equity shares)
Edetweiss Finanlal Service Uimited (uitimate holding tompany) ] 33.70.000 961% 23,720,000 012
330.22.000 3.50,72,000
e e
Other equity
Asat As 3t
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Capital Redemption Rederve
Opening balance 4.50 4.50
Add ; Additions during the year -
4,50
Securities Premium
Opening balance L9128 13914
Add : Additions during the year an lssua of equity shares - -
229134 29124
ESOP Resarve
Opening balance o567 o567
Add : Additions during the year 400
0.57 .67
Ratained earnings
Opanlng Balance -47.28 53.28
Deferred tax an ESOP -
Ade: Profit for the year 52.43 6.19
ESOP reversal on lapse of vesting period 2.3 y
Ad Other comprohensive income fof the year G.10 -0.70
Add: Transaction with shareholders in capaclty as such - — ]
Amount available for appropeiation 561 4728
Approgriations: . -
Cloting Balance (X -47.28
2,149.13




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)}

{Currency: indian rupees in millions)

27

28

28.1

29

30

Revenue from operations

Interest Income

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest income on Loans

Interest income an deposits with Banks

Interest income on Margin with brokers

Interest Income « Others

On financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on debt instrument

Fee and Commission income
Income from Securities Broking
Advisory and ather fees

Particulars

Service transferred at a point in time
Service transferred over time

Total revenue from contract with customers

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/ {loss} on financial instruments at fair

value throtgh profit or loss

On trading portfolio

(Loss) / Profit on trading of securities (net)

Fair value gain - P&L - equity

Profit on equity derivative instruments (net}

Profit/{Loss} on trading in currency derivative instruments (net)
Profit/{Loss} on interest rate derivative instruments (net}

Total Net gainf{loss) on fair value changes

Fair value changes:

- Realised {loss) / gain

- Unrealised gain / (loss)

Taotal Net gain/floss on fair value changes

Other income

Profit on sale of fixed assets {net}
Credit Balance written off
Interest Income - On Tax Refund
Business charges services
Miscellaneous income

Far the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
79.29 18.16
0.53 1.42
3.98 1.09
0.03 0.01
220.14 6.92
303.97 27.60
46,91 -
0.83 16.48
47.74 16.48
47.74 16.48
47,74 16.48
-332.78 5.16
14214 -0.62
809.05 -
-8.05 63.56
- 2.10
609,36 70.20
468.73 70.43
140.63 -0.23
609.36 70.20
0.01 0.00
0.04 -
0.03 2.58
8.30 -
-0.91 0.04
7.47 2.62




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

31

32

33

Impairment on financial instruments
Provision for doubtful debts, advances
Provision on loans

Finance costs

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings

Interest on shortfall in payment of Advance Income Tax
Interest / dividend on preference shares

Financial and Bank Charges

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to pravident and other funds
Expense on employee stock option scheme (ESOP)
Staff weifare expenses

Expense on Employee Stock Appreciation Rights

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

0.00 0.04
0.1¢ 0.03
0.10 0.07
16.31 0.07
- 0.00
- 33.86
0.03 0.00
10.34 33.93
659.70 31.88
13.83 1.9¢
0.71 N
3.66 0.81
1.65 .
679.55 34.59




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
34 Other expenses
Auditors’ remuneration {refer note below) 0.16 .15
Comimission and brokerage - 1.29
Communication 15.84 5.13
Insurance 0.17 o.07
Legal and professicnal fees 7.57 2.02
Printing and stationery 0.07 0.07
Rates and taxes 0.00 0.00
Rent 27.02 4.99
Repairs and maintenance 4.99 2.08
Forelgn exchange loss (net) 0.01 -
Computer expenses 5.76 0.70
Computer software 4,65 0.53
Clearing & custodian charges 95.61 4.34
Dematerialisation charges 0.01 0.00
Membership and subscription 0.12 D.18
Office expenses 4.60 4,81
ROC Expenses 0.20 0.04
Goods & Service tax expenses -0.06 -3.61
Stamp duty 12.38 0.04
Stock exchange expenses ) -7.33 1.62
Travelling and conveyance 5.07 Q.74
Housekeeping and security charges 0.66 0.01
177.50 25.22
Auditors' remuneration:
As Auditors .15 0.15
For taxation matters - -
Towards reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.01




Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency:indian rupees in millions)

35 Earnings per share

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
{a) |Profit/(loss) after tax ' 650.43 6.17
Less:- Dividend on preference share capital - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders 50.43 6.17
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of
{b}|Rs 10 each
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year ’ . 3,50,22,000 3,50,22,000
Number of shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the
year 3,50,22,000 3,50,22,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year (based on date of issue of shares) 3,50,22,000 3.50,22,000
{c} |Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) {a/h) 1.44 0.18

The basic and dilutive earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.




Edel Investments Limited

Nates to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency:Indian rupees in milians}

36 Segment reporting

The Company’s business is organised and management reviews the performance based an the Business segments as mentionad below:

Segment Activities covered
Capital based business Interest Income on foans and other capital based activities
Treasury Income from treasury operations, income from investments, interest income on debt
instruments and dividend income.
Agency business Broking, adviscry and product distribution services
Income for each segment has been specifically identified, Expenditures, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual
segmants or have been allocated to segments on a systermatic/resonable basis.
Based on such allecations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and labilities have been preparad,
Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered ta aperate only in the domestic
segment and therefore there s no reportable geographic segment.
The foflawing table gives infarmation as required under the Ind AS -108 - Operating Segment Reporting:
For the year ended | For the year ended
Farticutars S1March2022 | 31March 2021
| Segment revenue
a) Capital based business 79.32 19.59
b} Agency business 47.74 16.48
<} Treasury 834.01 78.22
d) Unallocated 747 262
Total 968.54 116.91
Less : Inter segment revenue - -
Total income 968.54 116.91
H  Segment results
a) Capital based business 5.94 -23.86
b} Agency business 9.96 851
¢} Treasury 73.36 33.02
d) Unallocated 7.47 162
Total 96.73 20.29
Profit before tanation 96.75 20.29
Less : Provision for taxation -46.33 -14.10
Profit after taxation 50.43 6.19
HF  Segment assets
a) Capital based business 3,047.23 2,4%0.00
b} Agency business 4.09 0.98
€] Treasury 517231 250.72
d) Unallocated 251.60 23522
Totat 8,475.22 2,576.92
IV Segment Habikities
a} Capital based business 56,14 311.74
b} Agency business 25.62 9.81
€} Treasury 5,728.37 44.53
d} Unallocated 12.87 49.49
Total 5,822.9% 377157
Vv Capital expenditure {Including capital work-in-progress)
a} Capital based business 0.56 0.24
b} Agency business .34 0.20
c) Treasury 5.91 097
d} Unallccated - +
Tatal é.81 241
V! Depreciation and amortisation
4) Capita! based business 0.36 Q.48
b} Agency business 0.21 0.41
c} Treasury 3.73 193
d} Unafiocated - -
Total 4,30 281
Vil Significant non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business . 0.23 016
b} Agency business 0.60 021
¢} Treasury 8.73 0485
d) Unallocated - .
Total 1015 103




Edet Investmants Limited
Notus to the financlal statements {continued]
[Curvency: Indian Augeesin miiipns)

37 Related Partiey

In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standard 3¢ on Aelated party transactions notified under sacts

on 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Acepunts) Ruies, 2014,

I List of related partles and relationship:

Name of related parties by wham control is axe reised Ecap Securities and investment Liruted {formely £¢ap EUities Limited) |Holdng, company}

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {Uitimaee Holding
Ecompany)

Name of eelated porties over whaa control is eugreised  |Edelweiss Intemnational {Singapore} Pte Limitad

Feitour Subsldiaries
{with wham transactions have taken piace] Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Seruces Limitad

ECL Finanie Limited

Edelweiss Astel Management Limited

Edelwelss Alternative Asket Advisors Limited
Edetweiss Investment Adviser Limired

Edehweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Mulli Strategy Fund Adwisors LA
Edetweiss Asset Reconsiruction Co. Limited
Edelcap Securties Limitad

Edel Land Limited

Associate Companies Edelweiss Finance and Investments Lmited
(with wham transactions have taken place) Edelweiss Sroking Limited

Edelwdiss Securities Limitad
Edelwelus Custodial Services Limived

Key Maasgoment Personael 3. Puniyashree Kanade
Mr.Avarh Patel

B Trantactions with redated partles

3 Haturs of Trantaetion Refated Farty Name For the yaar ended For the year ended
Na, 31 March 2082 31 March 2021
[Capital account tranzactions during the Year
1 [lssue of Praforence Share caphial 1 Edel Land Limited 294000 300,00
2 [lssued af Preference Share caphial 1o Edet Land Limite 2.950.00 30080
Edelcap Secunties Limitod TS0 0 -
3 [Redemption of Preference Share capltal to Edel Land Limited 3,250.00 30052
Edelcap Sezunties Limited 750.00
4 linvastrmant i Prefecance share capital Edelzap Securitiex Limited. 1,593.00 -
Sale of fnvestmant in frefarence share capital Edelcap Securities Limited 1.393.00 -




Mo

Kature of Transaction

Ralated Party Name

Far the year ended

For the yaor anded

31 March 2022 31 March 2071
[Currant actount transactions during the year
§ {Shortterm loans taken from (refer note below]  [Edelweiss Rural & Cornoeste Services Limited 695.21
Edel Land Limited 305.00
6 [Shore serm kaans eepaid £ {refer note helow) Ecteiwelss Rurai & Corparata Servises Limlted 8187
et Land Limiteg - 305,00
5 [Shortter laans taken from (Max. Debit / Credit)  [Edeiweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 48240 2260
6 [Shortterm loans repaid to {Max, Debit / Credlt}  |Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -654.50 1756
7 [Short term loans taken from (Total transaction)  [Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limitad 560950 8167
8 [Short term laans repaid to {Total ransaction) Edetwelss Rural & Corporgte Serviees Limited -5,609,50 58.93
Shart terrm loans given to {refer note below) 8 lweiss Aural & Carporate Services Limited 252,83
Short term loans repaid by trefer nate below} £delweiss Aural & Carporate Services Limited - 11410
9 [Short term loans gluen to (ax. Debit / Credit) Edabweits Aural § Corporate Services Limited 7,597.50 107,40
10 [short term loans repaid by (Max, Debie / Credit)  [£delweiss Rural & Cormorste Services Limited -1,64150 10650
L1 [shors term laans gluen ts (Total Transaction} Eutelwelss Rural & Catgonste Services Limited 15,308.88 97558
12 Short term lgans repaid by (Total Eddnlweiss Rural & Cor ices Limited “14,762.21 837.18
13 [Margins placed with (Total Transaction} Edebwelss Custodiat Services Umiced 12,883.71 116514
14 [Marging withdrawn by (Total Transaction) Edetwaias Cuptodial Services Limited -12.327.7% 167485
15 {Margins placed with (Max, Dabit / {radi) Edeiwelss Custodiat Services Limited 162816
16 [Margins withdrawn by {Max, Debit / Crediz) Edeiwelss Custadial Services Limited 47230 B
17 [Margin recelved from [Max, Debit / Credith £CL Finance Umited 2344 017
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 216 0.15
Loelweiss Financial Services Limited o.02 s.07
£oap Equitles Limited - 003
Eel Land Limited 18 514
Edelweiss Rural & Carparate Services Limited 0.80 6.07
£ drlweiss Securlties And investments Private Limited: 03a 0.00
Crieiweiss Investment Advisors Limited 114
Edelcap Securities Limited o800 -
18 [Margin renaid te (Max, Debit / Cradit) £CL Flnance Limited 13 017
Eoelweiss Finance and livestments imited FAT) 0.14
toel Land Limited 76.22 o1
£delweiss Financial Services Umited 802 0.7
Etelweiss Seturities And lnvestments Private Limited 034 c.co
Eaelwaiss iuestment Advisors Limited L
Ctetweiss Aural & Corporata Serulces Uinited o8¢ -
tdelcap Securities Limited 2.00
18 [Msrgin received feam (Total Transactian} Edalwelss Flaance and lnvesiments bimited 104714
£CL Flnance Limited 50.03 -
tdel Land Limited 30548 -
Edelwdiss Inveestment Aduitors Limited tio
Crietweiss Aural & Corporate Serdces jimited 5.42
£ diohweiss Securltis and Investments Prvats Limited 318
Eaelcas Secutities Linitad 1256 -
Edelwein Financial Services Limied 0.03 -
20 {Margin repaid to (Total T th and timited 106,64
ECL Finance Hmited 787
Ecel Land Limited 306.64
Edelweiss imvestment Adwisars Limited 735
Edelwens Rurat & Corporate Services Limued 542
Edelweiss Securities and Investmants Priaty Limited kAL
Edelcap Securities Limied 1265
Edehwaiss Financial Services Limitec 003
21 {interestncome on with ustodial Services Limited 308 109
21 {intetest expense onloans lakan from Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limied 10.31 oot
23 [interestincome on loant given 1o Edelwsiss Rural 8 Carporate Services Limiled .y .18




Nature of Yrangaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended

Far the year ended

31 March 2002 31 March 2033
23 interestincame an Job ingtruments Edelweiss Rucal f Corparae Services Limited 16601 692
Edel Land Limited 54.13 .
25 {Chearing, Demat & Trade expasure charges paid 10 [Edelweiss Cuskodial Services Limitad 0.88 415
16 {Brakstage Pald Edelweiss Securitles Limited - L10
27 {Brokerage received Eclef Land Limnited (¢estwhite ECap Equities Limitad) 27.55 0.9
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate $aruices Limited 070 041
Edel Land Limited - .8
ECL Finance Limited 285 383
Edelweiss Finznce and tnvestments Limited 1320 008
Edelweiss Financiat Services Limited o2 0.29
Edelweist Securtties And mvestments Private Limited 0.36 0.0
Edelwsiss Investments ddvisars LUmited 0.2 fga
£delweiss Retail Finance Limitsd o0
£delweiss Housing Finance Limited (1
Edelcap Securities Limited 085
28 |ESOP and 5AR Charges aid 1o Edelwaiss Financlal Services Limited 237 -
29 |Cost reimbursemants recovered from ECL Finanice Limited 0.4¢
Edel 1and Limited 751 .
30 [Cost reimbursements pard 1o Edelweiss Aural & Carporate Services Limeted. 2875 848
Edelweiss Finangial Services Limited 005 0.a2
Edel Land Limited {erstwhile £Cap £quities Limited) - om
Edelweiss Ganeral Ingurance Company bimited - 0.25
Edetweiss froking Limited 007 om
ECL Finance Limited 0.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited . 0.08
Edelwelss Custodial Servicas Limand - o090
Edel Land Limited 2.00
31 [Advisary Fees Income received fram Edel Land Limited . 142
Edel Lynd Limited {erstwhile ECap quities Lmited} - 17
32 {Flred assat purchased from Edriwelss Rursl & Corparate Sardces Limited 043 oAt
Edetweits Securitles Limited - 000
Edenwelss Sraking Limited . 000
Edel Land Limited 001 .
Edewelss Ratall Finance Limited - 093
Edelweiss Finance & nvestnants Limited . o1
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.28 L1
Edelwelas Finoncial Services Limited 0.00 -
Edetweits Comtrade Limited 000 .
Edefwelss Inuestment Adviser Limited o0 -
13 |Fixed a5set Sold @ ECL Finance Limited . 005
Edelcap Secueitles Limitad 000
Edelweits Atsets Management Umited 000 -
Edetwelsz Aural & Corporate Services Limitn 000 o0
Edeiweiss Securities Uimited . - 009




Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended

For the ysar ended

No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
34 {Amount paud to broker far Cash segment Edelweiss Securities Limated a1p
35 Jamaunt recerved from broker for Cosh segment Ecelweiss Securities Limited .07
36 {Purchase of Debt securities from £del Land Limived 2.895.41 1060
Edelcap Securitles Ltd 109,91 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Secvices Limited 2,890.00
37 |Sate of Debe securites o Edel Land Umited 2.010.84 37.81
£def Land Umited {erstwhile ECap Equities Limtied) . 56.04
Edetweiss Investment Adviser Limized 3tair -
Edelcap Seaurities Ltd 220,84 -
38 JAmount received from clients for Cash segment | Edeiweiss Financa & Inwt, L1d, 17.178.40 -
ECL Finance Limited 1,855.47 -
Edel Land Linuked 13,186.47
Edelweiss Cammadities Services Lid- EACSL 000
Edeiweiss Retaif Finance Limited 57.51
Edctweiss Housing Finance Ltd. 146.08
Edaleap Securities Lmited 195
Edetweiss Investmeans Adviser Limited 074
33 {Amaunt pald ta ctents for Cash segment Edelwelss Finance & inve. Led, 1552207
ECL Finanee Limited 576139
Edel Land Limusd 1457331
Edelweiss Commoities Services Ltd- EACSE, f.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 15892
Edetwelss Housing Finance L1d. 168.09
Edelcap Securites Limitea a57
Edalweiss Inwestment Adviser Limited o7s
40 Jkey manageriat remuneration pald to Managerial persannel 59.40
Balarces with related partias
41 [shore Term lgans given Lo Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limded €85.00 13833
42 [Trade payabies to Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 262 0.5
Edehusiss Financial Serviees Limitod ¢85 g03
Edelweiss Flaance and Investments Limited 184040 So0
ECL flnance Limited 4216 oo
Edelbweiss Broking Umited . 0.01
Edel Langt Limited 324.73 49,24
43 [Trade receivzble fram Edelwenss Securithes Limited . a1
£del Lang Limited 1.06 208
Edelcap Securitles Lirmited o0 -
Edelweits [nvestmeat Adviser Limited 0.5
jEdelweiss Assets Managament Limited Q.00
44 [Margin recelatie from Fdol tand Limited 000
45 [Othet payvable to 2delcap Securities Limited 040 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 144 0.34
Edplweiss Finance and lavesiments Limited - G4
46 [Other receivable ram Euchweiss Aural & Carporate Services Limited 0.75 087
£ hwtrts Seurities Limited 024 -
el Land Limited 003 o0
£CL Finance Limited L8
Eqelean Secutitins Limited 2048 .
Extel Finance Company timited o1




sr. Nature of Transaction

Refated Party Rame For the year ended Faf the year ended
No. 31 March 2072 31 March 2021
47 Jlnvestment in Debt Seo Edehweiss Rural & Catperate Services Limited 3 1068
Edel Lang Limited L9E1.47 .
48 {investment In Subsldiary company £dehweiss Inteenational {Singapore} Private Lisnited 234817 234812
49 iPrefarence Share Capical issued to el Lang Limited 2,84000 300.00
ECap Equities Limited - 300.00
50 {Interast receivable on Loan Income Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limitad 729 241
51 {Nargin placed wizh Edehweiss Custodlat Sarvices Limited 695.00 139,66
Eddehusiss Securities Limited 004 o.00

Hate: Loan given/taken 1o/lrom related parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ fram reiated partles are disclosed based on she maximum of deblt and credlt |
wransactions and total of dubit and cradit of transactions amaunt given/taken and phaced / ratund received during the reporting period,

Dlsclasure under saction $86() of the Companles Act, 2043 for 1oans and EUarantee : Loans have been given fer general busingss purpose.

infarmation relating o remuneratian paid 1a key manageriaf persan mentioned aBove exdudes provision made or gratudy, Ieave encashment snd deferred bonus which are
weovided for group of employess o4 an overall hasls, These are included on cash basis. The variabie compensation included herain is on ¢ash basis.




Edel investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

EY:]
{a)

ib)

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

Amount of Rs. 9.01 million/- (Previous year: Rs. 1.31 million/-) is recognised as expenses and included in

“Employee benefit expenses”,

Defined benefit plan {gratuity):

The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the

statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratulty benefit glan.

Staternent of profit and loss of the year:

Net employee benefit expenses {recognised in employee cost}:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 3.53 .47
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1.29 0.12
Past service cost - -
Total included in employee benefit exp 4.82 0.59
Balance sheet:
Details of provision for gratuity:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Liability at the end of the year 28.53 2.85
Amount in balance sheet 28.53 2.89
Changes in the present value of the defined benafit obligation are as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Liability 2t the beginning of the year 2.85 1.29
Transfer in/{out) 22,89 0.7d
interast cost 1.29 0.12
Current service cost 3.53 0.47
Benefits paid -1.83
Actuarial (gain}/loss on obiigations AL .24
Liabllity at the end of the year 28.53 2.8%|
Non-current liability at the end of the year 23.99 2.37
Current liability at the end of the year 4.54 0.44




Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements [continued)
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
{Currancy: Indian Rupees in Millions)

3% Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits

Amount recognised in the balance sheat:

For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Liability at the end of the year 28.53 2.89
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year - -
Amount recognized in balance sheet 28,53 2.85
Experience adjustment:

For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

On plan liabilities (gain)/ioss 0.42 0.29
Qn plan assets (gain}floss - -
Estimated contribution for next year 0.42 0.28
Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate current 5.90% 5.00%
Salary escalation current 7.00% 7.00%
Interest Rate on DBO /{Assets) 5.00% 5.90%)
‘Withdrawal rate 16.00% 25.00%
Meortality rate IALM 2012-14 {Uit.}]  1ALM 2012-24 {Ult.)
Wighted average duration of the obligation 4 Years 3 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
DBOQ increases/ {decreases) by 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 1.51 0.12
1% Decrease In Salary Growth Rate -1.43 -0.12
1% Increase in Discount Rate -1.44 -0.12
1% Decrease in Discount Rate 1.54 G.13
1% tncrease in Withdrawal Rate 01,04 -0.01
1% Decrease in Withdrawai Rate .14 .04
Mortality {increase in expected lifetime by % year) ¢.00 Negligible change
Mortality {increase in expected lifetime by 3 years) .00 Negligible change




Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

39

Earnings and expenditure in foregin currency:

The company incurred foreign exchange loss of Rs 0.01 million as on date of balance sheet {Previous Year Nil).

40 Capital commitments, contingent liabilities and litigations:
The company has no capital commitments, contingent liabilities and pending litigations as at balance sheet date.
{Previous year : Nil).
41 Cost Sharing:
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding company alongwith its fellow subsidiaries incurs
expenditure like processing fees, rent , electricity charges etc. which is for the cammon benefit of itself and its
certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries inciuding the company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the company
on the basis of number of emplayees, time spent by the employees of other companies, actua! identifications etc.
Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 34 includes reimbursements paid
based on the management's best estimate.
42 Corporate Social Reponsibility
As per provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013,
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year was Rs. Nil.
b} Amount spent during the year on;
St Yet to be paid in
No. |Particulars In tash cash Total
{i) |Construction / acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil
(i} |On purpose other than (i) above Nil Nit Nil




Edel investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Miilions}

43 Approach to capital management

Company objectives, when managing capital, are to {a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to othar
stakeholders and {b} maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Total Debt 2,940.00 300.00
Equity 2,652.25 2,599.35
Net Debt to Equity 111 0.12

44 Employee Stack Option Plans
The Ultimate Holding Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {“EFSL"}} has Emptoyee Stock Optien Plans in force.

Based on such ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest
in a graded manner to company’s employees, Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of

such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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Edel Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Curreney : Indian rupees in Millions)

Contractual magurity analysis:

Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 March.
Repayrments which are subject to netice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Group expects that the counterparties will not

request repayment on the earliest date it could be required to pay.

As at 31 March 2022 1 month to 6 months |6 months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years |3 years to 5 years |Total
Trade payables 2,216.35 - - - 2,216.35
Subordinated financial liabiiities - 2,940.00 - 2,940.00
Other financial liabilities 615.63 - - - 619.63
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities
2,835.98 2,940.00 - - 5,775.98
As at 31 March 2021 1 month to 6 months |6 months to 1 year 1year to 3 years |3 years to 5 years |Total
. [Trade payables
60.72 - - 60.72
Subordinated financtal liabilities - 300.C0 - - 300.00
Qther financial liabilities
2.80 - - 2.80
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities 63.51 300.00 - - 363.51
Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial assets as at 31 March.
As at 31 March 2022 1 month to 6 months | 6 months to 3 year | 1 year to 3 years | 3 years to 5 years Total
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 100.21 2.38 5.80 - 108.39
Stock-in-trade 301.34 1,961.47 - - 2,262.81
Trade receivahlies 9.99 - - 9.99
Loans 692.32 - - - 692.32
Investments - - - 2,348.12 2,348.12
Other financial assets 2,867.25 - 16.33 2,883.58
Total 3,971.11 1,963.84 5.80 2,364.45 8,305.20
As at 31 March 2021 1 month to 6 months | & months to 1year | 1yearto 3 years | 3 years to 5 years Total
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 51.64 - - - 51.64
Stock-in-trade - 10.72 B - 10,72
Trade receivables 3.69 - - 8.69
Loans 140.72 e - - 140,72
Investments - - - 2,348.12 2,358.12
QOther financial assets 195.70 - 17.33 - 214.03
Total 397.76 10.72 17.33 2,348.12 2,773.92
Maturity analysis for derivatives:
As at 31 March 2022 1 month to 6 months |6 months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years {3 years to 4 years |Total
Other net settled derivatives (other than thase entered 0.11 . - - 0.11
into for trading purposes)
Total 0.11 - - - 0.11
As at 31 March 2021 1 month to 6 months |6 months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years |3 years to 5 years {Total
Other net settled derivatives (other than those entered 299 - - - 2.99
into for trading purposes)
Total 2.899 - - - 2.99
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48 (a)

i

]

(i)

Edel Investments Limited
Motes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Falr Values of Financial Instruments

March 31, 2022
Particulars Levell Level2 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Berivative financial instruments {assets]:
Exchange-traded derivatives 0,11 - 0.11
Tatal derivative fi iaf i nts [assets) 0.11 - 0.11
Stock-in-trade
Debt securities 2,262.81 2,262.81
Total stock-in-trade - 2,262.81 2,262.81
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 0.11 2,262.81 2,262.92
March 31, 2022
Particulars Level § Level 2 Total
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -
Derivative financial instruments {Liabilities):
Exchange-traded derivatives 20.70 20.70
Total derivative financial instruments {liabilities) 20.70 - 20,70
Finanglal lisbilities designated at FVTPL
Provision for short sale 175.45 175.45
Total financlal Habilities measured at falr value on a recurring basis 196.15 - 196.15
March 31, 2021
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Berivative financial instruments (assets):
Exchange-traded derivatives 2.99 2.99
Total derivative financial instruments {assats) 2.99 - 2.99
Stock-In-trade
Gebt securities 10.68 10.68
Equity instruments Q.04 004
Total stock-in-trade 10,72 - 10.72
Total financial assets measured at fair valye on a recurring basis 13.70 - 13.70
March 31, 2021
Partleulars Level 1 Level 2 Total
Liabilities measured at fair value on a requrring basis -
Cetivative financial instruments [Liabilities):
Exchange-traded derivatives Q.57 0.07
Total derivative financial Instruments {[iabilities) 9.07 - 007
Total financlal liabilities measured at falr value on a recurring basis 0.07 - 0.07

Falr valuation technlques:
Equity instruments and units of Alternative investment Funds

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded cn recognized stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis,
Such instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV], taking into account
redemption and/ar other restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Eguity instruments in non-listed entities are
initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by externai valuer at instrument
levet. Unlisted equity securities are classified at Level 3,

Debt securities While
most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded desivative characteristics.
Fair value of these instruments s derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing In the market as at the reponting
date. Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. in cases where debt securities are
not activity traded Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer madel for measuring fair value.

Derivatives
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade credit
ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are exchange traded futures and options contracts.

The most frequently applied valuation techniques include queted price for exchange traded derivatives and 8lack Scholes modeis {for
optian valuation).




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

48 (b} Disclosure related to collateral;

Following table sets out availability of Company's financial assets to support funding:

31 March 2022 Pledge as Available as Total carrying
collateral others 1* collateral others 2+* amount
Cash and cash equivalent including
bank balance 9.18 - 99,22 108.40
Derivative financial instruments - - - 0.11 .11
Stock in trade - - 2,262.81 - 2,262.81
Investments - - - 2,348.12 2,348.12
Loans - - - 692.32 692.32
Trade receivables - - - 9.99 9.89
Other financial assets 2,845.40 - - 38.17 2,883.58
Property, plant and equipment - " 6.67 - 6.67
Other Intangible assets - . - 0.60 0.60
Current tax assets (net} - . - 13.84 13.84
Ceferred tax assets {net} - - - 130.66 130.66
Other non financial assets - . - 18.15 18.15
Total assets 2,854,58 - 2,269,349 3,351,18 8,475.24
Pledge as Available as Total carrying
31 March 2021 collagteml athers 1* collateral others 2** amr:unt
Cash and cash equivalent including
bank balance 9.68 . 41.97 51.64
Derivative financial instruments - - - 2.99 2.99
Stoci in trade - - 10,72 - 10,72
investmeants - - - 2,348.12 2,348.12
Loans 140,72 140.72
Trade receivables - . - 8.69 8.69
Other financial assets 195.80 - - 18.23 214.03
Property, plant and equipment - - 3.18 - 3.18
Other intangible assets - - - 1.58 1.9
Current tax assets {net) - - - 1.56 1.56
Deferred tax assets {net) - - - 185.68 135.68
Qther non financial assets - - - 8.00 8.00
Total assets 205.47 - 13.90 2,757.55 2,976.92

* {Represents assets which are not pledged and Company believes it is restricted frorm using to secure funding for legal or other reason)

** {Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available to secure

funding in the normal course of business)




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miliions)

48 {¢)

Analysis of risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2022

Particulars Financial services Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank batances 108.40 108.40
Derivative financial instruments 011 0.11
Stock in trade 2,262.81 2,262.81
Trade and other receivabies 9.99 9.9%
Loans 592.32 692.32
Investments 2,348.12 2,348,12
Qther financial assets 2,883,58 2,883.58
8,305.31 8,305.31
Other Commitments - -
Total 8,305.31 8,305.31
industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2021
Particulars Financial services Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 51.64 51.64
Derivative financial instruments ’ 2.99 2.99
Stock in trade 10.72 10.72
Trade and other receivables 8.69 B.69
Loans 140.72 140.72
{nvestments 2,348.12 2,348.12
QOther financial assets 214.03 214.03
2,776.91 2,776.91
Other Commitments - -
Total 2,776.91 2,776.91




Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

48 (d)

Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

financial Instruments not measured at fair value

The folowing takle sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and gnalysing them by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

21 March 2022
Farticulars Total carrying amount]  Total fair value Level 1 Level 2
Financia assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 28.90 98.90 98.90 -
Bank bzlances other than cash and cash equivalent 9.49 9.49 9.49 .
Trade receivables 9.99 9.99 - 9.99
Loans 692.32 692,32 . 692.32
investments at cost 2,348.12 2,348.12 - 2,348.12
Qther financial assets 2,883.58 2,883.58 2,845.40 38,17
Total 6,042.40 6,042.40 2,953.80 3,088.60
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 2,216.35 2,216.35 - 2,216.35
Subordinated liabitities 2,940.00 2,940.00 - 2,940.00
Qther financial liabilities 444.19 444.15 - 444,15
Total 5,600.53 5,600.53 - 5,600.53
31 March 2021
Particulars Total carrying amount | Total fair value level T ievel 2
Financial assets:
Cash and cash eguivalent 4113 41,13 41.13 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 1052 10.51 10.51 -
Trade receivables 869 8.69 “ 8.69
Loans 14071 140.71 - 140.71
Investments at cost 2,348.12 2,348,212 - 2,348.12
Other financial assets 214.03 214,03 185.80 18.23
Total 2,763.19 2,763.19 247.44 2,515.75
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 60.71 60.71 - 60.71
Subordinated liabilities 360.00 300.00 - 300.00
Other financial liabilities 2.30 2.80 - 2.80
Total 363.50 363,50 “ 363,51
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Edel Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indlan rupeds in mittions}

51, Othet Notes

{al ionship with Struck off G

Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 of section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

Relations
hip with
the Struck
Balance off
Balance outstandt [company,
ouistanding Relationship with ngason if any, to
Mature of transactions with | as on March | the Struck off company, if {March 31, be
Name of the struck off company struck-off Company 31, 2022 any, to be 2021
Nil Wit it Nit Nil Nil
() Othar ratios
Year Ended
Particulars
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023
1.Tatai debt to Tota] assets (%) (Refer Nate 1) 34.69%] 10.08%
2.Net prafit margln (%) {Refer Note 2} 5.21%] 5.30%)
Notes

1.Total debt ta Total astets = {Debt securities + Borrowings other than debt securities} / Total assets
2.Net profit margin = Net Protit for the period / Total Income

5 Previoud year comparatives

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wheraver necessary to canfirm 1o the cusrent year classification.

As per our report of even date attached,

For Dhleaj & Dheera) For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountonts

Firms' Registration No, 102454W
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